
Meeting papers

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee

Wednesday 20 March 2019 at 2.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester





Date Published:12 March 2019     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 20 March 2019 at 2.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence. 

Sophie 
Benfield

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Sophie 
Benfield

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 14)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meetings held on:
a) September 2018
b) 14 February 2019

Sophie 
Benfield

4  FUTURE WORKING OF THE COMMITTEE 

The statutory scrutiny officer to provide a verbal update on the draft 
scrutiny review report, which will be presented to the Overview 
Scrutiny Management Committee on 22nd March 2019.

Simon Harper

5  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE 
UPDATE 

Members of the Committee are invited to comment on the issues 

Dev 
Chakraborty

Colin Chick



    

considered at the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee meeting held earlier the same day.

Scrutiny members are invited to attend this meeting in an observer 
capacity.

Please refer to the following link to view the agenda and supporting 
documents for the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee meeting held on 20th March 2019: 
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=72
5&MId=9093&Ver=4

Please refer to the following link for information on the GFirst Local 
Enterprise Partnership: https://www.gfirstlep.com/

6  BREXIT 

Members of the Committee to receive a verbal update from the 
GFirst LEP on local activities relating to Brexit from an economic 
perspective.

Chairman

7  WORK PLAN 

To note the committee work plan and suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings. 

Chairman

8  FUTURE MEETINGS 

5 June 2019
4 September 2019
30 October 2019
20 November 2019

Chairman

Membership –  Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, 
Cllr Stephen Davies, Cllr Kate Haigh, Cllr Joe Harris, Cllr Klara Sudbury, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Phil Awford Cllr Paul McCloskey, Cllr Bruce Hogan and Cllr Martin 
Whiteside

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to 
make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, Jane Burns 01452 
328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or reports 
relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the meeting, please 
contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=9093&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=9093&Ver=4
https://www.gfirstlep.com/
mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(d) 

1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 106 of the 

Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services 
(tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a 
member of the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic 
Services Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee held on Wednesday 5 September 2018 

PRESENT: 
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Kevin Cromwell 
Cllr Stephen Davies
Cllr Kate Haigh
Cllr Dave Norman (Chair)

Cllr Paul McCloskey
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Bruce Hogan
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr Joe Harris
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Klara Sudbury (Cllr Paul Hodgkinson 
substituted at the meeting). 

2. MINUTES 

The minutes from the meeting held on 20 June 2018 were agreed and signed as an 
accurate record of that meeting.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting.

4. CURRENT ISSUES 

David Owen, Chief Executive of the GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership, (GFirst 
LEP), updated members on the economic growth aspirations for Gloucestershire, 
including an overview of the reports considered at the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee meeting held at Shire Hall earlier that day. 

Scrutiny committee members are invited to attend Joint Committee meetings in an 
observer capacity. Please refer to the link below to view the agenda and supporting 
documents for the Economic Growth Joint Committee meeting held on 5 September 
2018:- 

http://192.168.220.171:9071/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=8751&Ver=4 

To aid discussion, scrutiny members were encouraged to read the Joint Committee 
reports in advance of the Scrutiny Committee meeting. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

http://192.168.220.171:9071/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=8751&Ver=4


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Members were informed that, to date, the LEP had now out turned £54.61 million of 
funding from a total of £101.7 million. Actual project spend to date was £47.19 
million. 

Since the report to the last meeting, work had commenced on the Merrywalks 
Shopping Centre in Stroud and a recommendation had been made to approve £1 
million of funding from the LEP Investment Panel for the Hartpury College ‘Tech to 
Plate’ Project. 

The new expanded Growth Hub and Business School at Oxstalls had now 
completed and was due to open the following week; work was progressing on the 
A40 Over Roundabout improvement scheme and further works due to commence 
on the Metz Way improvement scheme. 

The Gloucester Transport Hub was due to open the following month, in October 
2018 and the GlosCol Cinderford Campus was on track for completion and due to 
open at the end of September 2018. 

Despite positive steps in commencing and completing many of the growth projects, 
there continued to be some challenges to the LEP, including finalising the funding 
agreement for the Cheltenham Spa Railway Station scheme. Members were 
informed that more work would be undertaken on this, plus several other projects in 
the weeks ahead. Adoption of the LEP Review Document 2018/19 was due at the 
end of October 2018 (please see below for details on the review). 

Nigel Rigar: GCC Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure gave an 
update on the economic growth of Gloucestershire from a GCC perspective, before 
being thanked by both members and officers for his hard work and commitment to 
several large projects he had been responsible for coordinating. 

Key issues reported from the Economic Growth Joint Committee meeting included: 

a) Programmes funded across the various European funding streams continued 
to deliver on schedule. 

b) Publication of the ‘Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships’ Review 
indicated that the Government intended to deliver on its promise outlined in 
the Industrial Strategy White Paper and the intention to bring forward reforms 
to the leadership, governance and accountability of the 38 LEPs charged 
with kick-starting economic growth and creating jobs within their regions.

Key recommendations forming part of the LEP Review were confirmed as: - 

i) All Local Enterprise Partnerships encouraged to follow best 
practice and produce an annual delivery plan and end of year 
report.

Page 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strengthened-local-enterprise-partnerships
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/industrial-strategy-building-a-britain-fit-for-the-future


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

ii) Government recommends each Local Enterprise Partnership to 
consult with the business community before appointing a new 
Chair and Deputy Chair.

iii) In line with best practice in the private sector, Local Enterprise 
Partnerships to introduce defined terms of office limits for 
Chairs and Deputy Chairs (where these are not currently in 
place).

iv) Government’s aspiration is for Local Enterprise Partnerships to 
work towards strengthening the representation from the private 
sector, increasing representatives from the private sector to 
form at least two thirds of the board, ensure each Local 
Enterprise Partnership is business-led. 

v) To maintain focused board direction and input, the Government 
to work with Local Enterprise Partnerships to establish a 
maximum permanent board of 20 people, with the option to co-
opt an additional five board members with specialist knowledge 
on a one year basis.

vi) The expectation for refreshed Local Enterprise Partnership 
Boards will be to improve gender balance and representation of 
those with protected characteristics. The aspiration is for Local 
Enterprise Partnership Boards to have equal representation of 
men and women by 2023. 

vii) As legal entities, Local Enterprise Partnerships will be required 
to hold Annual General Meetings. The Gloucestershire First 
LEP has agreed to set the expectation that meetings are open 
to the public with invitations to businesses to attend. Dates of 
meetings to receive widespread promotion. 

viii) The Government to support Local Enterprise Partnerships in 
setting out how to ensure external scrutiny and expert 
oversight, (including participating in relevant local authority 
scrutiny panel enquiries to ensure effective and appropriate 
democratic scrutiny of investment decisions).
 

ix) Up to £20 million of additional funding will be available between 
2018 to 2019 and 2019 to 2020 to support the implementation 
of the changes and embed evidence in Local Industrial 
Strategies.

c) Gloucestershire Inward Investment Bid

The committee received an update on the Gloucestershire Inward 
Investment Bid (a joint bid between the County Council and the six local 
authorities seeking European funding to set up a dedicated team from which 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

to focus on inward investment for the County, including foreign direct 
investment). It was noted that further ‘in kind’ support from several districts 
had increased the bid from £750k to £1 million. The application had been 
submitted at the end of May 2018. Assessors had completed their appraisal 
of the application before submitting to the GFirst ESIF Sub-committee on 
August 14 2018. The deadline for feedback had been the day before the 
meeting (September 4 2018). It was hoped the project would commence in 
January 2019.

d) Board members 

The committee was advised of two new board members: - 

Ian Mean was Editor of the Citizen Newspaper for 10 years and Editor in 
Chief of Gloucestershire Media and Editor of the Western Daily Press. Ian 
was currently Gloucestershire Director of Business West, and involved in 
running Gloucestershire Chamber of Commerce. Ian’s role on the GFirst 
LEP Board to include the title of ‘Small Business Champion’ representing 
small businesses on the Board. 

Jim Grant is Principal of the Cirencester Sixth Form College. 
Jim has 36 years experience in education as teacher, tutor and manager in 
London and in Gloucestershire. Jim has 30 years’ experience as an A Level 
and GCSE examiner, moderator, principal and chief examiner.

e)  Economic Intelligence 

Claire Edwards, Team Leader for Economic Growth and Strategic Planning 
at Gloucestershire County Council, updated the Joint committee on the 
outcomes of the activities of the officer working group set up by the Senior 
Officer Group to improve the collation of data and intelligence within the 
County and to better understand the commissioning needs required to help 
strengthen core economic proposals and support future economic growth 
investment activities. 

Whilst supporting recommendations to note the progress of the working 
group and a proposal for members to be assist in shaping the range of 
growth scenarios considered within the forecasting tool, the Joint Committee 
requested further consideration of the request to release of £50,000 from the 
Business Rate Pool Strategic Economic Development Fund to support future 
commissioning activities and help strengthen the core economic baseline. 
The Joint Committee requested further consideration of this proposal by the 
Senior Officer Group, with a report back to the Joint Committee at its next 
meeting. 

f) Business Rates Pool 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

David Stanley: Accountancy Manager at Stroud District Council updated 
members on the 2018/19 forecast of the 100% Business Rates Pilot, 
including new proposals for a Pilot in 2019/20. 

The Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool was set up in 2013/14 to 
maximise the business rate income retained within the County and to 
support economic growth within the project areas administered by the GFirst 
LEP. 

The Joint Committee had been informed that the Business Rates Pilot 
2018/19, (involving all 7 Gloucestershire Councils), was due to end on 31 
March 2019. Initial financial modelling, undertaken as part of the application 
process over the summer, had suggested a potential benefit from the pilot of 
£10m, increasing to a forecast benefit of £14m. 

A consultation paper issued in July 2018, (on the 2019/20 Local Government 
Finance Settlement), included information on the process for submitting bids 
for business rates pilot schemes in 2019/20. Gloucestershire, alongside 
other local authorities throughout England, would be eligible to submit an 
application to engage in the business rates retention pilot scheme 2019/20. 
Applications would need to be submitted by 25 September 2018. 

Members noted that the main change from the current (100%) scheme was a 
reduction in the local share from 100% to 75%. Another important change 
was that there would no longer be a ‘no detriment’ clause. 

Earlier that day, the Joint Committee agreed to support the proposal to join 
the 2019/20 pilot scheme as an ‘in principle’ decision, pending the outcomes 
of the County Section 151 Officer meeting due to be held on 12 September 
2018. 
In considering the recommendation to release funds from the Strategic 
Economic Development Fund for the commissioning of countywide economic 
investments, (including a proposal to develop Junction 10 on the M5 
Motorway), the Joint Committee had expressed concerns about the risks 
involved in making a decision at this present time, particularly when the 
amount of reserve funding would not be known until January 2019. 

To demonstrate to the LEP, (and to help secure Homes England Funding for 
the County), the Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure 
advised that it would be useful to agree an ‘in principle’ decision for the 
transfer of reserves from the Strategic Economic Development Fund to 
support some of the proposals included within the current Strategic 
Economic Plan .  

Following a detailed and in-depth discussion, the committee agreed to defer 
the decision to allocate SEDF funding to i) support the M5 Junction 10 
improvement scheme, and ii) support the work of the LEP and GCC Data 
and Analysis Team. A further discussion would be held at the Joint 
Committee meeting on 21 November 2018. 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

The Committee requested that the Senior Officer Group (SOG) consider the 
eligibility criteria and project approval process for the assessment of future 
funding bids from the Strategic Economic Development Fund and make 
recommendations to the Joint Committee at future meetings. 

5. VISION 2050 CONSULTATION 

Dr Matthew Andrews from the University of Gloucestershire gave a detailed update 
on the Vision 2050 Big Conversation Consultation. (The consultation ended on 31 
July 2018). Dr Andrews explained why the consultation had been designated to the 
University and highlighted some of the initial findings emerging from the study. 

Expanding on some of the themes and ambitions initiated by the consultation, Dr 
Andrews agreed to explore some of the committee’s comments as part of the 
detailed analysis of the outcomes from the consultation. Dr Andrews also agreed to 
revisit the committee to report on progress. 

Key comments included; 

a) More work was required on considering the contrasts in ideas from different 
age groups, including considering the relevance of the ideas when applied to 
the same age groups in 2050; 

b) Consideration to be given to the development of a ‘light rail’ proposal as a 
future mode of transport; 

c) Consideration to be given to the application of themes and ideas when 
applied to some of the varied locations in the county; 

d) Members stressed the importance of engaging with students and younger 
people when developing a vision for the future.  

For more information on the work involved in promoting Gloucestershire’s 2050 
Vision, including the outcomes of the Big Conservation Consultation exercise 
please go the following link: http://glos2050.com/ 

For a summary of the outcomes from the Big Conversation, please go to: 
http://glos2050.com/docs/Glos2050BigConversationSummaryReport.pdf    

Key themes emerging from the Consultation have since been confirmed as: - 

 Gloucestershire’s local environment, (green space, wildlife, countryside, 
towns and cities, including buildings heritage);

 An appreciation of the local environment and concern for its protection; 
 Restricted opportunities for living and working in the county (including the 

high cost of housing and limited job opportunities, in comparison to other 
areas, and the loss of young people, skills, and investment to cities). 

Page 6

http://glos2050.com/
http://glos2050.com/docs/Glos2050BigConversationSummaryReport.pdf


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

 Responses to the Super City and Cotswold Airport ideas suggested that, for 
some topics, there emerged differences in priorities and concerns between 
younger and older residents; 

 Overall, planning for the future was seen as a positive and worthwhile activity 
with a general consensus the discussion should continue. 

6. WORK PLAN 

Cotswold Area of Outstanding National Beauty (AONB)

Having considered a request from the Economic Growth Joint Committee in March 
2018 to consider a proposal by the Cotswold Conservation Board to seek ‘‘National 
Park’ status for the Cotswold Area of Outstanding National Beauty (AONB), the 
committee received an update on the work being undertaken by Cotswold District 
Council (CDC) in response to a motion at the full council meeting in May 2018. 
Members also noted a draft scoping document circulated to members before the 
meeting. 

Members were advised that at the CDC council meeting on 15 May 2018, members 
had considered a cross-party motion, requesting officers to carry out an evaluation 
of the potential benefits and disadvantages of designating the Cotswold AONB as a 
National Park. Engaging with local authorities, Cotswold District Council hoped to 
gain a better understanding of some of the implications the proposal might have on 
local residents, including the possibility of increased housing costs.

The motion, (proposed by Cotswold Liberal Democrat Group Leader, Councillor Joe 
Harris and Cotswold Cabinet Member for Housing, Health and Leisure, Cllr Stephen 
Hirst), had received unanimous support. The outcome of the meeting was to 
undertake early preparatory work on issues relating to the Cotswold Conservation 
Board’s aspiration to seek National Park Status for the Cotswold AONB. 

It was reported that the Cotswold Conservation Board (CDC) was currently seeking 
to meet with CDC to discuss the proposal. (A meeting had yet to be arranged). 
Speaking with CDC officers earlier that week, it was established that the district 
council was willing to participate in a countywide review.  

Noting comments from Cllrs Stephen Hirst and Joe Harris, (Cotswold District 
scrutiny members), it was agreed to await the outcomes of the CDC review before 
considering the request by the Economic Growth Joint Committee to consider the 
impact of the Cotswold Conservations Board’s proposal.

After the meeting it was suggested the meeting between CDC and the Cotswold 
Conversation Board be held at Shire Hall, Gloucester, (the meeting to hosted by 
CDC). Invitations to be extended to district authorities and key stakeholders. The 
suggestion would be subject to the agreement of the scrutiny committee. 

The request by the Economic Growth Joint Committee, (to establish a scrutiny task 
group to consider the impact of seeking National Park status for the Cotswold 
AONB), was deferred, pending the outcome of the review by Cotswold District 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Council and the findings of the Government Call for Evidence Consultation 
‘Landscapes Review’. 

Other Work Plan Considerations 

a) Brexit 

Several members suggested it might be useful for the committee to consider the 
economic implications to the county, pending the outcome of the Brexit  decision in 
March 2019. The committee requested periodical updates on local preparations, as 
and when appropriate.  

b) Mobile Phone Coverage/Connectivity 

A presentation from mobile phone providers to consider the impact of influences 
affecting mobile phone coverage and connectivity in rural areas to be arranged in 
the New Year. 

c) Cotswold Water Park 

A member requested a presentation from the Cotswold Water Park Trust. 
The committee agreed to add the request to the committee work plan. 

7. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The dates of the following meetings were noted: 

31 October 2018 (Cheltenham Borough Council) 
21 November 2018
14 February 2019 (Forest of Dean District Council) 
20 March 2019
5 June 2019
4 September 2019
30 October 2019 (Stroud District Council) 
20 November 2019
19 February 2020 (Gloucester City Council) – date to be confirmed 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 3.25pm 

Page 8



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 
held on Thursday 14 February 2019 commencing at 1.30 pm at the Forest of Dean District 
Council Offices, Coleford.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Stephen Davies

Cllr Kate Haigh
Cllr Joe Harris
Cllr Bruce Hogan
Cllr Victoria Atherstone

1. WELCOME 

1.1 Chairman of the Committee, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, opened the meeting by 
thanking Forest of Dean District Council (FODDC) for hosting the meeting. 

1.2 It was explained that the purpose of the meeting was to focus on issues 
relating specifically to the economic agenda of the FODDC and for members 
to consider proposals on how engagement between the Gloucestershire First 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), the Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Joint Committee, the Joint Scrutiny Committee and the District Authorities 
might be improved. 

1.3 The Chairman informed members that, from the discussion, an outcome 
report would be produced, incorporating the responses to any questions 
considered at the meeting.

2. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Klara Sudbury, Phil Awford (Tewkesbury 
Borough Council), Paul McCloskey (Cheltenham Borough Council) and Martin 
Whiteside (Stroud District Council).

Cllr Victoria Atherstone substituted for Cllr Paul McCloskey.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Cllr Brian Robinson, a member of the Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 
declared he was also a member of FODDC.

4. FOREST OF DEAN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

4.1 The Chairman invited Cllr Bruce Hogan to open the first section of the 
meeting, a presentation from FODDC officers on key issues and concerns 
affecting the economic growth and development of the Forest of Dean.

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

4.2 Cllr Hogan first introduced Peter Williams, Head of Paid Service to give an 
overview of the planning for economic growth in the Forest of Dean.

4.3 The Committee were shown the ‘Vision for the District’ document (Appendix 
1) which gave an outline of the community outcomes & objectives for the 
future. 

4.4 Members then heard an overview of the constraints that impact the district. 
The following points were highlighted:

 Although appreciated as a benefit in other areas, the Forest of Dean’s 
main constraint is its highly sensitive landscape;

 Geographically there are good links to the south and west which provide 
good opportunities but these are restrained by transport links, mainly 
congestion on the roads;

 A lift in house prices of around 12% which is a benefit for home owners 
but also further increases the affordability gap;

 The Council’s capacity and sustainability in light of budget cuts;
 Poor attainment for education and a lack of available skilled careers in 

the area; and
 The declining number of young people with an increase on an aging 

population (65+).

4.5 The second presentation was given by Wendy Jackson, Regeneration 
Manager at the district, who gave members an overview of the regeneration 
priorities.

4.6 It was first highlighted that there is currently around 4000 businesses 
registered in the area. 91% of these businesses only employ less than 5 
people, with around 5 employing over 250.

4.7 The largest employer sector is manufacturing followed by health, 
construction and education which employ little over 8% in each. Members 
heard that tourism was emerging as a growing sector, with well over half of 
the commercial planning applications in the last year being tourism related. 

4.8 The Regeneration Manager informed the Committee that in 2015 the 
Government set up the ‘Coastal Revival Fund’ to help restore coastal 
landmarks and bring economic growth to communities up and down the 
Great British Coast. Due to the District’s links with the Seven and Wye, they 
were able to apply for £60,000 to support access improvements at Lydney 
Docks and Harbour. For the next stage of regeneration at Lydney Harbour, 
there is currently a bid in process for £1.9 million to improve accessibility and 
introduce facilities to encourage visitors.

4.9 Members heard that in Cinderford there is a committed regeneration board 
that is delivering sustainable projects to benefit the town and the district as a 
whole. The main focus for regeneration in Cinderford currently is education 

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

led. There is a £150 million investment, which has started with the 
completion of the new Gloucestershire College Campus. 

4.10 The Council are also awaiting land at ‘5 Acres’ to be transferred in order for a 
business case to be prepared for a new leisure facility.

4.11 Finally Members were advised that there is project taking place in Coleford, 
to build 10 new apartments and 3 new commercial buildings for rent.

4.12 The Committee then heard from Cllr Richard Leppington, in his role as the 
Vice Chair of the Forest Economic Partnership (FEP). The body was created 
in 2018 to be the united voice for delivering a thriving and sustainable 
economy. 

4.13 Cllr Leppington reiterated the strengths and weaknesses for the district as 
mentioned above. He then explained these concerns have now formed the 
basis of 4 sub-groups within the Partnership: 
 Education and Skills: How to get the workforce needed for the District 

now and in the future to power and sustain the economic growth.
 Transport and Infrastructure: To look at the transport routes in the 

District to enable them become fit for purpose. 
 Digital Connectivity: To take practical steps to get the speed, reliability 

and connectivity to support the ways people increasingly work, live, study 
and play now and in the future.

 Bridges & Boarders:  To consider the benefit of participating in the 
South Wales-West of England economic powerhouse.

4.14 Members were informed that the FEP now has 150 members representing 
more than 100 organisations and businesses and has submitted to 5 public 
consultations, including Vision 2050. The FODDC also won a Federation of 
Small Business award for the most innovative small business campaign in 
creating the FEP and facilitating its work.

4.15 The FEP is currently bidding for funding to support a project on electric 
vehicles and charging points throughout the Forest. As well as working to 
introduce a flexible work placement scheme for Dene Magna School.

4.16 Next, the Chairman introduced Dev Chakraborty, Deputy Chief Executive of 
GFirst LEP, who gave an update to members of their engagement with the 
Forest of Dean’s economic growth.

4.17 Members were informed that the Forest had received a number of high 
profile funded projects in recent years, including Gloucestershire College at 
£2.6 million, Cinderford Link Road at £3.8 million, support for the Lydney 
Transport Cycle scheme at £1 million and Hartpury University developments 
received £1 million worth of funding.

4.18 GFirst have identified the following five economic challenges in the Forest:
 Not building enough affordable homes;

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

 The need for a better supply of good quality employment land;
 The provision of skills needs to better match needs of business;
 The lack of a joined up county approach; and
 The demographic issues of keeping and attracting young people.

4.19 Members were advised that GFirst is currently leading on the development of 
a Local Industrial Strategy for Gloucestershire. This will be in partnership 
with the Government and will help identify priorities to improve productivity, 
increase innovation and enhance infrastructure and business growth.

4.20 This development has a deadline of March 2020 and members of the GFirst 
LEP are keen to encourage all local authorities to actively engage with them 
on this process. There will be a timetable issued in the next few weeks for 
workshops.

4.21 The Committee heard that GFirst are looking to grow their LEP board. There 
is currently work underway to identify where they have gaps in 
representation in relation to diversity, geographical spread and the 
private/public organisation split.

4.22 Finally, members were informed that GFirst had started to produce a fresh 
pipeline of potential projects to invest in. There was a strong ask to members 
to have a think about potential developments in their area that could be put 
forward.

4.23 Following the presentations, local and county members were invited to ask 
question of GFirst LEP and GCC/FODDC council officers.

4.24 Several local members raised concerns relating to the congestion problems 
at Chepstow. In response, members were advised that GCC were in ongoing 
discussions with Monmouthshire County Council to find a joint solution. It 
was emphasised however that any solution would carry a huge financial 
pressure on the local authorities.

4.25 A discussion followed on potential rail solutions for the District. Local 
members suggested a rail link to Lydney from the dock area, an upgrade of 
the current Lydney station or a second station at Elton Corner would all be 
possible options.

4.26 Members were informed that GCC are currently reviewing the Local 
Transport Plan, which will go to public consultation later in the year, as well 
as creating a new county-wide rail strategy. The latter is currently undergoing 
public consultation and FODDC members are encouraged to feed into this. It 
was acknowledged that another good opportunity for connectivity could be 
an idea being suggested in Bristol of a Swansea to Swindon ‘corridor’. 

4.27 In addition, members noted the downgrading of bus services in the area due 
to Stagecoach consistently losing money on many services. Members 

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

acknowledged the funding pressures on GCC to support bus services where 
stagecoach could not and noted that the FEP is currently looking into this 
issue.

4.28 The FEP is also considering an alternative approach to transport issues in 
the District. The group are keen to target ambition and raise aspirations for 
young people and parents, whilst creating opportunities within the Forest to 
avoid the need to constantly travel out.

4.29 On the topic of broadband/mobile signals, local members heard that officers 
were actively engaged in closing off black spots still existing in the District. In 
addition, by 2020 98% of the County will have superfast broadband, and 
discussion have started to prepare for the next stage which is fibre. Local 
authorities have been advised that providers for fibre/5G will approach areas 
that have pre-planned and are ready for installation.

4.30 Members discussed the benefits of creating corporate videos to showcase 
and support businesses in the area. Whilst the FEP has no budget to 
undertake something like this, it was advised that other areas have produced 
videos through local donations. GFirst also advised that they are currently in 
discussions on producing a County-wide video and so would feedback the 
idea of this being split per District.

4.31 On exploring the impact of increasing tourism links in the District, members 
were advised that the FODDC work with the Wye Valley Tourism Association 
on delivery and alignment of services. There is also a formal application for 
AONB status with DEFRA at the moment.

4.32 GFirst highlighted that the LEP has a number of business groups that 
represent specific sectors; one of these represents the Visitor Economy and 
Tourism sector. There are clear advantages of collaboration when it comes 
to joint bidding, for example.

4.33 The meeting was brought to a close by the Chairman thanking the FODDC, 
officers and members for their contributions.

5. FUTURE MEETINGS 

20 March 2019
5 June 2019
4 September 2019
30 October 2019
20 November 2019

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 15:40

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	DRAFT 14.2.19


